• 23

24

Q

Nevada?

Okay. Did Paulette Bynum reside in the state of

THE WITNESS: Yes, Sir.

24

Court found that you had physically abused Christopher, right?

24

23

. 24

Α

Q

But as of now, yes.

The Court found that you had physically abused Christopher

Okay. When did you first come to understand that

Α

Yes.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 24

All right. Now, in July of 2012 you were not 0 engaged in any counseling at that point. Is that correct?

Was I engaged in any counseling? No, not at that time. No.

Right. At that time you weren't seeing anybody for counseling, right?

Α Right.

Okay. And then following the fact that you learned Q that you were accused of actually physically abusing Christopher, you didn't go see a counselor until October 30th of 2012. Is that correct?

- No, that's not correct in how it was. Α
- Okay. Who did you go see? Q

I went and saw Jane Fortune. But it wasn't because Α I was, you know, found -- you know, guilty. I knew with her she explained to me what I had to go through, but I just went back to her on the 30th to have more understanding --

Q Okay.

-- of what was going on.

Did you see any other counselors between July of 2012 when you found out that you had been found to have physically abused Christopher Jr. and October 30th, 2012 when you went back to Ms. Fortune?

No, because I have already completed the case plan. Α

Α

Correct.

21

22

23

24

point. In the event that we do not proceed, we do not conclude testimony today, the possibility exists that this matter would be continued to another date. Assuming that you no longer need to testify in person, can you make arrangements to appear telephonically at any upcoming court hearing?

MS. DEBERRY: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: All right. Would that be your preference to appear telephonically rather than to come back to Las Vegas to appear in the court?

MS. DEBERRY: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: All right. Okay, Ms. -- I guess, that'll work unless there's some reason to have to recall you as a witness in which case we'll deal with that issue if it arises.

But in any event, Ms. Simpkins?

MS. SIMPKINS: Actually, it's Ms. Molinar who's going to be --

THE COURT: Oh, Ms. Molinar?

MS. MOLINAR: Yes.

THE COURT: All right.

20 MS. MOLINAR: I'm going to be asking the questions.

(MS. MOLINAR AND MS. SIMPKINS BRIEFLY TALK AMONGST

THEMSELVES.)

MS. SIMPKINS: She thought we were going to do a new date first, Your Honor. So --

20

21

22

23

24

you met with Ms. Pharr. Did you complete your therapy with Ms. Pharr?

A Yes, Ma'am.

Q Okay. And where -- what state did you have your therapy with Ms. Pharr?

A In Louisiana.

Q Okay. So then, Ms. DeBerry, why did you go -- or I'm sorry. First, how did you find out about Ms. Pharr?

A Through the parenting teacher. She referred me to Ms. Pharr after the parenting sessions were over.

Q Okay. So if you completed your parenting -- or your counseling sessions with Ms. Pharr, then why did you then go to your therapy sess -- go to therapy with Ms. Fortune?

A I was told by my prior attorney and if I'm not mistaken, Ms. Douglas and the last District Attorney, that the sessions that I've done wasn't enough for The Courts. And those three names that I just named referred me to Ms. Fortune.

Q Okay. So when you say those three referred you to Ms. Fortune, did all three of them tell you to go to her? How specifically did you find Ms. Fortune?

A I was on a hearing conference. They called me and they looked her up and told me that this would be a good lady for me, and they prefer me to go see her.

Q

0

classes?

Α

Q

I --

and the safety of the children.

of Family Services?

Yes, Ma'am.

8

9

10

11 12

13 14

15

16

17 18

19

20

21 22

23

24

when she go back that she wouldn't do it again. D-11-446967-R

11/02/12

Okay. So throughout working your case plan and

Okay. So you testified that you went to parenting

More specifically more to discipline of the children

I learned not to touch or hit them in such a way

that will harm them, which is a sign of physical abuse if it,

discipline which is what I just mentioned. If you hit them in

discipline that I use which is the corner which I prefer that

is because if you such spank a child and they're in a middle

session of playing that if -- when you spank them and they go

discipline them in a corner, which I use for my daughter, she

has time to think about what she has done. And then she know

back to doing the same activity they were doing, you really

don't learn anything from that discipline. But if you

you know, harms them. I've also learned that abuse versus

such a way that it hurt, it is abuse. I -- which the

throughout this case, did you keep in contact with Department

classes and you've gone to counseling. So can you tell me a

little bit about what you've learned in your parenting

TRANSCRIPT VOL. III

. 10

11 12

13

· 14

15

16 17

· 18

19

20

. 22

21

23

24

Q Okay. So if you've had -- let's say you've had a really bad day, the kids are driving you completely insane, you're not really sure -- do you have a plan as what to do, how to handle that situation?

A I know I can call Mom. I can call my therapist.

There are also ways that I can call my neighbor to come over to watch the kids while I take a walk outside. Count 1, 2, 3 to calm myself down. The main thing that I will use is calling the therapist or calling the neighbor to come over to be with the kids for a while.

Q Okay. And in either your parenting classes or your counseling, have you learned to identify signs that your child is being abused by someone else?

A Yes.

Q Can you describe what you've learned about those signs?

A If they're around that such person they will be afraid. They can jump if the person tries to touch them.

They can cry. They feel that if that person around them, they in danger.

Q Okay. And what would you do if any of your children were displaying any of those signs you just mentioned?

A I would immediately ask my child if that particular person has done anything to them. And once that my child has,

. 22

23

24

you know, told me the statement of what if that person was doing anything to them, I would immediately go to the person and question them. And if I didn't get an answer for that I know I will call the police on that matter to see why my child is continually acting that such way around that person.

Q Okay. So you said you would talk to the child. What if your child denied any abuse but they were still showing the signs that you've described earlier?

A I will call the police to make a statement on the reasons to why my child would be acting that way around that person.

- Q Okay. Ms. DeBerry, where are you currently living?
- A In Latta, South Carolina.
- Q Okay. And do you reside in an apartment or a home?
- A A home.
- Q And how are you -- do you own that home?
- A Yes.
 - Q And how did you come into possession of that home?
- A When my father passed he left it for me as an inheritance.
- Q Okay. Have you provided proof that you own this home?
 - A Yes, I did.
 - MS. MOLINAR: Permission to approach, Your Honor.

THE WITNESS:

Okay.

20

21

22

23

24

owned is right here under the tax map of the home that I --Q So although your name is spelled incorrectly because it misses one letter, do you -- is that a true and correct copy of the deed to the home of which you reside and own? Α Is it a correct --Is it a true and correct copy of the deed of the home of which you reside at and own? Α Yes, Ma'am. MS. MOLINAR: Your Honor, at this time I would move to admit Exhibit B. THE COURT: What's the full -- how does your full name appear on the document? THE WITNESS: It's just -- it's Keandra DeBerry. They just took where it's K-e-a-n. They just misspelled --THE COURT: I understand the misspelling, but there's no middle name on that document? THE WITNESS: No, there's no middle name. THE COURT: Mr. Cordes? MR. CORDES: May I have one moment, Your Honor? I'm just looking back to see my notes. (BRIEF PAUSE.)

I still have some questions as to the -THE COURT: Do you want to voir dire as to the -MR. CORDES: If I may, Your Honor.

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: Go ahead.

KEAUNDRA DEBERRY

testifies as follows on:

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. CORDES:

- Q Ms. DeBerry, you testified earlier today that you reside at 4 -- 502 Henry Street. Is that correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q Okay. And the document identifies 108 Chapel Street.
- A That's the address my father reside at, but he left it -- if you look at the tax map, that's the actually address there of where I reside at because I was a minor at that time. So they had to list it as him and his address.
 - Q Okay.
- A It wasn't actually sent over to me and released to me until I was age of eighteen.
- Q Okay, but the document doesn't identify what the actual address is on Henry Street, does it?

(BRIEF PAUSE.)

- A No, it doesn't.
- Q Okay. So the document in and of itself has somebody else's name, or at least not your name spelled correctly, and it does not have the address. Is that correct?

THE COURT: You don't know?

2

3

THE WITNESS: I don't know.

your --

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21 22

23

24

THE COURT: Henry Street?

THE WITNESS: 502 Henry Street.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. The objections are noted.

They're overruled. First of all, this is -- appears to be a deed of distribution. This isn't an actually recorded deed of property, is it? This is just a distribution from the Probate Court.

THE COURT: All right. So what's the physical address of

THE WITNESS: Right. When Father passed I had to go with the grandmother. I was a minor, and we had to go up there. It's the deed of several houses. And our father left in the will the first one of his two kids to turn eighteen gets that house, and we split the rest of the houses.

THE COURT: All right.

THE WITNESS: But that's -- that's how they do it in South Carolina.

THE COURT: Any issues concerning the misspelling of Ms. DeBerry's first name and the fact that this only recites that it's on Henry Street and not a street number --

MS. SIMPKINS: Well, for --

1	once the training process is over,
2	BY MS. MOLINAR:
3	Q Can you clarify is that eight dollars and twenty-
4	five cents an hour?
5	A An hour. Yes.
6	Q Okay. Ms. DeBerry, is that enough to help you
7	support your children?
8	A Yes, Ma'am.
9	THE COURT: You're employed full you're working forty
10	hours a week?
11	THE WITNESS: Yes, Sir.
12	MS. MOLINAR: Your Honor, may I approach the witness?
13	THE COURT: You may.
14	(MS. MOLINAR WALKS TO THE WITNESS STAND WITH DOCUMENT.)
15	BY MS. MOLINAR:
16	Q Ms. DeBerry, will you review that document to
17	yourself?
18	A Yes, Ma'am.
19	Q What is the document that you're looking at?
20	A A pay stub.
21	(DEFENSE'S EXHIBIT C IS IDENTIFIED.)
22	Q Is it a true and correct copy of a pay stub?
23	A Yes, Ma'am.
24	Q What is the date on it?

Q And what were your visits before you moved to South Carolina?

A Every day.

22

23

24

Α

Yes, Ma'am.

Okay. Do the kids know their younger brother --

24

1	to check on me. He was with his former girlfriend. And they
2	got into a argument because he was there to come check on me.
3	And there was the argument like I said, the argument was
4	between them two. There was officers called. It wasn't on my
5	behalf. They had the wrong person. I did get cited for it.
6	And I went to court, but it was dismissed because it wasn't on
7	my behalf.
8	Q Okay. So, Ms. DeBerry, is it still your testimony
9	today that there was no domestic violence between you and
10	Christopher Bynum Sr.?
11	A Correct.
12	MS. MOLINAR: Okay. No further questions, Your Honor.
13	<u>KEAUNDRA DEBERRY</u>
14	testifies as follows on:
15	REDIRECT EXAMINATION
16	BY MR. CORDES:
17	Q Okay. So, Ms. DeBerry, you gave a very clear
18	definition of what you believe domestic violence was when you
19	were asked on direct examination, right?
20	A Yes, Sir.
21	Q And part of that was the police being called out to
22	you fussing with Mr. Bynum, right?
23	A No. It wasn't my argument. It was him and his

girlfriend's argument. I was there.

20

21

22

23

24

Q Ma'am, I'm asking you about your -THE COURT: The question is your -MR. CORDES: -- definition.

THE COURT: Your definition, not what happened in April.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Well could you repeat that for me, please.

BY MR. CORDES:

Q Yeah. Your definition of domestic violence was the police being called out because of some fussing, screaming, cursing, right?

A Right.

Q Okay. So when you testified earlier you did not provide truthful information about the police being called out to an incident with -- involving you and Mr. Bynum, were you?

MS. SIMPKINS: Objection. I'm going to advise my client not to answer that question.

THE COURT: On what basis?

MS. SIMPKINS: Perjury, Your Honor. I -- I'm not gonna have her admit that she was truthful or untruthful. I don't want criminal charges filed. Out of an abundance of caution, you can draw whatever inference you like.

MR. CORDES: And I would ask Your Honor if she invokes the Fifth Amendment that you draw a negative inference from her refusal to answer that question about her prior testimony.

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: All right.

Okay. Your counsel advised you not to answer that question. You're free to follow your counsel's advice or answer it. The consequences may be possible criminal charges for perjury depending upon what your answer is.

THE WITNESS: I will not answer.

MR. CORDES: She needs to invoke her Fifth Amendment privilege, Your Honor.

MS. SIMPKINS: Just say --

MR. CORDES: If that's her position.

MS. SIMPKINS: -- you take the Fifth.

THE WITNESS: I take the Fifth.

THE COURT: So you're invoking your Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination?

THE WITNESS: Yes, Sir.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. CORDES:

Q Now, Ms. DeBerry, you had conversations with Ms. Douglas regarding domestic violence in the past between you and Mr. Bynum, didn't you?

A No.

Q Now you participated in a telephonic conference including your prior attorney, Ms. Douglas and the former DA in 2012, didn't you?

23

. 24

Q

Α

prior domestic violence?

I didn't tell her there was domestic violence.

So you did disclose to Ms. Pharr that there was

So it's your testimony today that you -- you

24

Q

Okay.

It took place in 2012, right?

1

Q

from being a better mom? 1 Nothing. 2 Α Any other reasons that you might not be getting back 3 Q 4 together with Mr. Bynum, Sr.? 5 No. Α MR. CORDES: Thank you. 6 Judge, I have no further questions for this witness. 7 8 THE COURT: Any recross? MS. SIMPKINS: Your Honor, could I take a two minute 9 recess? I have to run and check something with my office. 10 11 I'm sorry. Five minutes? THE COURT: Two's kind of an awkward number. I'll give 12 13 you five. 14 MS. SIMPKINS: Thank you. (WHEREUPON, THE MATTER WAS TRAILED AT 14:47:13 AND RECALLED AT 15 16 15:05:18.) THE COURT: Okay. We are back on the record in 446967. 17 18 Parties and counsel are present. 19 Ma'am, you are still under oath. 20 THE WITNESS: Yes. THE COURT: All right? 21 22 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 23 THE COURT: Ms. Molinar, you want to --MS. MOLINAR: I --24

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA OFFICE OF THE CLERK

In the Matter of the Parental Rights as to: AAMIYAH DE'NASIA LAMB AND CHRISTOPHER LAMONT BYNUM, JR.) Nevada Supreme Court No. 69047) District Court No. D446967
MINORS.	Electronically Filed Apr 12 2016 11:13 a.m.
KEAUNDRA DEBERRY,	Tracie K. Lindeman Clerk of Supreme Court
Co- Appellant	
vs.	
CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES	
Respondent	
)

RESPONDENT'S APPENDIX

Volume II

STEVEN B. WOLFSON Clark County District Attorney Nevada Bar No. 1565 RON CORDES Chief Deputy District Attorney Nevada Bar No. 4955 601 N. Pecos Rd., Bldg. B, Room 470 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (702) 455-5320 Attorney for Respondent cordesrl@ClarkCountyNV.gov

CHRISTAL DIXON, ESQ. Children's Attorney Project Nevada Bar #9009
725 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
(702) 386-1070
Attorney for Co-Appellant Subject Minors
CDixon@lacsn.org

DAVID M. SCHIECK
Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar #0824
MELINDA E. SIMPKINS,
Deputy Special Public Defender
Nevada Bar #7911
DEANNA MOLINAR
Nevada Bar #12045
330 South Third Street, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Attorney for Appellant DeBerry
msimpkins@ClarkCountyNV.gov

INDEX

2	VOLUME	PLEADING	PAGE NO.
3			
4	1	Affidavit for Service by Publication filed on 5/2	
5		Affidavit of Publication filed on 7/5/11	
6	·	Affidavit of Service by Certified Mailing filed of	
7		Case Appeal Statement filed on 5/28/13	
8		Motion to Withdraw as Counsel of Record filed	
9		Notice of Appeal filed on 5/28/13	
		Notice of Entry of Order filed on 4/30/13	
10		Notice of Hearing to Terminate Parental Rights	filed on 6/10/11 25
11		Notice of Rescheduling of Hearing filed on 1/11	/12 28-29
12		Notice of Rescheduling of Hearing filed on 1/2/	13 63-64
13		Order Appointing Counsel filed on 7/11/12	45
14		Order for Publication of Notice filed on 6/2/11	23-24
15		Order Shortening Time filed on 6/28/12	44
16		Petition to Terminate Parental Rights filed on 5/	/24/11 1-8
17		Pretrial memorandum Pursuant to EDCR 7.27 f	iled on 11/2/12 46-50
18		Receipt of Copy filed on 12/6/12	65
19		Request for Order Shortening Time filed on 6/2	
20		Stipulation and Order filed on 4/5/12	32-34
21		Stipulation and Order to Continue the Terminati	ion
22		of Parental Rights Petition filed on 2/1/12	30-31
23	1 Stat	e's Exhibit #1 (Admitted on 11/2/12)	
24		Case Plan Information 9/13/11 (Unfiled copy)	158-165
		Court Order filed on 2/4/11	73
25 26		Department of Family Services Confidential Refor 2/22/11 (Lodged copy)	port 82-104
27		Department of Family Services Confidential Re (Lodged copy)	port for 3/15/11 125-132
28			

1		
2	l 1 Den	artment of Family Services Confidential Report for 4/26/11 dged copy)
3	(Lôc	artment of Family Services Confidential Report for 9/15/11 dged copy)
5	∥ Ex l	Parte Motion for Typewritten Transcript; CD Memory Stick for the Purpose of Filing an Objection Mon 3/23/11
6 7	Find	lings and Order of Reasonable Efforts to vent Removal filed on 6/18/10
8	Find	lings of Fact, Recommendation, and Order of roval - Petition No. 1 filed on 2/24/11
9	Find	lings of Facts, Recommendation, Order of Approval - Petition No. 1 filed on 3/1/11 115-124
11	Obje and	ection to Masters Findings of Fact, Recommendation Order of Approval - Petition 1 filed on 2/18/11 74-81
12 13	Opp	osition to Objection to Hearing Master's Recommendation filed /11/11
14	Ord	er Denying Objection to Masters Findings of Fact, ommendation and Order of Approval - Petition #1
15 16	Orde	er for Confirmation of Appointment of Counsel filed on
17	Out	of-Home Placement Order - Unlicensed Relative
18	Out	of-Home Placement Order - Unlicensed Relative of-Home Placement Order - Unlicensed Relative
19 20		on 6/6/11
21	9/30	
22	3/30	/12 187-191
23	5/2/	of-Home Placement Order - Licensed Foster Home filed on 207-211
25	Rep	ort for Permanency and Placement Review
26	filed	on 3/7/12
27 28	filed	on 4/11/12 192-199

1 2	1	Report for Permanency and Placement Review filed on 9/26/12
3		State's Exhibit #2 (Admitted on 11/2/12)
4		Jane Fortune Counseling, LLC (6/6/12) 212-213
5		Respondent's Exhibit A (Admitted on 11/2/12)
6		Jane Fortune Counseling, LLC (7/7/12) 214-215
7		Respondent's Exhibit D (Admitted on 3/15/13)
8		Las Vegas Municipal Court Judgment 11/7/12
9		Transcript of Trial on 11/2/12 filed on 7/29/13
10	2	Transcript of Trial on 11/2/12 filed on 7/29/13 (con't)
11	3	Transcript of Trial on 3/15/13 filed on 7/29/13
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		

THE COURT: All right. The objection's sustained.

BY MR. CORDES:

- Q Okay. So did she give you the name of her oldest child's father?
 - A If she did I don't recall.
- Q Would referencing any of the items that you may have brought with you today help refresh your memory as to that?
 - A No, Sir, because I know I didn't write them down.
- Q Did she identify who the father of her sixteen or seventeen month old child was that you observed in June of 2012?
 - A We --
- MS. SIMPKINS: I'm going to object as to relevance, Your Honor. This child is not subject of this petition. So the name of the father is irrelevant.

THE COURT: What is the relevance?

MR. CORDES: Judge, the relevance is -- well, the offer would be that it's Mr. Bynum, Sr. So -- and she indicated that there were no concerns relative to the mother's care.

That child -- I think it's important to go into some of the background with the father and her contact with the father.

THE COURT: All right. The objection's overruled.

BY MR. CORDES:

O You can answer.

4

BY MR. CORDES:

5

Sr. or Jr.?

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20

21

22

23

24

Christopher, Jr., the child that was burned.

You -- wait, I'm sorry. You're talking Christopher,

No.

After Ms. DeBerry found out that Christopher, Jr. Q was burned, did she talk to you at all about the course of treatment she provided?

Can -- can you say that again without --

I'm sorry. After Ms. DeBerry observed Christopher, 0 Jr. to be burned, did she talk in her therapy sessions with you about the method she used to treat the injury she observed?

Α Yes.

What did she tell you?

She said that she looked at it. She didn't see anything immediately. She called her mother. Her mother said if it -- if it does discolor or, you know, burn come up, put Neosporin on it and put a bandage on it. She said after a few minutes she did see it darken or a burn, and she put Neosporg -- Neosporin and a bandage on it.

Did she discuss why she didn't take the child to have a medical appointment?

	3	
	4	
	5	
	6	
	7	
	8	
	9	
	10	
	11	
٠	12	
	13	
	14	
	15	
¢	16	
	17	
	18	
	19	
-	20	
	21	l

23

- 24

She told -- again, she was -- said she was talking Α to her mother who, I believe, she said is a nurse. And she said if it worsens you need to take him to the hospital. said at that time he was happy -- there was not a concern that it was severe enough.

So based on the meeting that you had with Ms. Okay. DeBerry in May of 2012, you diagnosed her with adjustment disorder with mixed emotions in -- in or about June of 2012. Is that correct?

- Α Correct.
- You indicated that she was also moderately Q depressed. Is that correct?
 - Correct. Α
- Did you refer her for any medication to treat the diagnosis?

When I saw her she had already been to the physician. In fact, she'd been to the physician because she had thyroid issues. She was coming under Medicaid. We had to have a physician referral, and so that was all taken care of.

- Okay. So you didn't refer her for any medication? 0
- Α No, Sir.
- Believing that her physician would be prescribing any medication she needed to treat either the depression or the anxiety. Is that correct?

23

24

A If -- I believe if you go to the next page she was on medication I knew she had been prescribed.

Q When you saw Ms. DeBerry on October 30th of 2012, how had that appointment been scheduled?

A I don't remember if -- no, she had called me, and we talked about -- I said I need to get you in here, I want to see you again. So she came on in; we scheduled an appointment. Actually, my office called her. Or she called me. I can't remember which way it went. I knew I needed to -- she called. She called.

Q And you said that she finally reported to you that she had a job?

A She didn't finally report to me. When I had spoken to her earlier, she was looking for the job -- a job.

Q Okay. When you had your four to five sessions with Ms. DeBerry between May and June 27th of 2012, she was unemployed. Is that correct?

A She was looking for a job. She was in the process of looking for a job -- in fact, the same job she was --

- O Okay. My question was, was she unemployed.
- A During that time?
- Q Yes.
- A Yes, from...
- Q Okay. And then you didn't have any communication

with Ms. DeBerry for the months of July of 2012 through October of 2012 until your telephone call where she scheduled the appointment on October 30th. Is that correct?

- A Correct.
- Q Okay. When Ms. DeBerry first met with you in May of 2012 do you know where she was residing?
 - A She was living in the family home in Dillon.
- Q When you met with Ms. DeBerry on October 30th of 2012 after you knew that The Court had found that she physically abused Christopher, did you discuss with her an explanation as to how Christopher had been physically abused by the iron touching his face?
 - A No.
- Q As you sit here today it's your opinion that Ms. DeBerry neglected Christopher. Is that correct?
 - A Correct.
- Q And that neglect led to Christopher being burned with an iron. Is that correct?
 - A Correct.
- Q And based upon the information that Ms. DeBerry reported to you, it was a accident that led to Christopher being burned. Is that correct?
 - A Correct.
 - Q You testified that you went to the home in June of

1	2012 and observed a fan blowing in the house. Is that
2	correct?
3	A Um-hmm (in the affirmative).
4	Q And, again, that was a dangerous situation that Ms.
5	DeBerry had exposed the child that was in her care to,
6	correct?
7	A It could have possibly been.
8	Q It's just like a hot iron that would be sitting on a
9	dresser, right? There's always the potential that the child
10	could be injured if something takes place.
11	A Sir, can I speak?
12	THE COURT: Can you answer the question?
13	MR. CORDES: Can you answer the question?
14	THE WITNESS: Okay. Not exactly the same.
15	THE COURT: Ms. Simpkins
16	THE WITNESS: No.
17	THE COURT: will have an opportunity to come back and
18	
19	THE WITNESS: Yeah, not exactly the same.
20	BY MR. CORDES:
21	Q Okay. So in your opinion there's a difference
22	between a fan that's circulating with blades and a child being
23	able to put their fingers in there, and an iron that's sitting
24	on a dresser. Is that

19

20

21

22

23

24

MS. SIMPKINS: Objection, speculation.

MR. CORDES: I'll rephrase, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.

THE WITNESS: I can give my opinion.

MR. CORDES: No. No, that's fine.

BY MR. CORDES:

Q Okay. When you met with Ms. DeBerry October 30th of 2012, you did not believe that medication was necessary. Is that...

A Medication can --

MS. SIMPKINS: Objection. I think it misstates the evidence. I don't think she's indicating one way or the other whether medication was necessary or not. Again, she's not qualified to make that determination.

MR. CORDES: I'm sorry, I didn't -- and maybe I'm not wording it in her words. I was just trying to clarify her testimony as to what she said about the medication. I'll rephrase again, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CORDES: Okay.

BY MR. CORDES:

Q When you met with Ms. DeBerry October 30th of 2012, did you discuss whether or not she was still taking any medications?

MS. SIMPKINS: Objection, asked and answered. 1 MR. CORDES: Judge, I'm trying --2 3 THE COURT: Overruled. MR. CORDES: Thank you. 4 5 THE COURT: Go ahead. THE WITNESS: We discussed it briefly. I routinely check 6 7 medications. 8 BY MR. CORDES: And why do you routinely check medications? 9 Because talk therapy can be more effective or as 10 Α effective depending on what study you peruse as medications. 11 Medications can have a placebo effect. So if she felt she was 12 dropping any of the medications and her presentation was much - 13 better, I'm in no position to say, why aren't you taking that 14 medication. I deal with people every day taking buckets of 15 16 medication that are a mess. Okay. So your focus with Ms. DeBerry during the . 17 time that you were providing the talk therapy was solely on 18 19 that method of therapy? 20 (No audible response.) 21 0 The talking. The... The cognitive emotive --22 Α 23 Yes. Q -- behavioral therapy and family strategy models. 24

I totally understand that. I need to know if you

May I look? Α

21

22

23

24

Can you please answer my question first?

THE COURT: If you don't --

THE WITNESS: No, Sir, because I don't remember.

incident be a good indicator of possibility of future physical

abuse?

A Okay. In -- basically, what I'm saying is when we look at risky behavior and a paramount is suicide -- so if someone which is a high risk we want to prevent this, if a person attempts suicide one time and they're in the state of mind to prevent suicide again, they verbalize that --

MR. CORDES: Judge, I'm just going to object. Non-responsive. The question was if there was a one-time incident of physical abuse.

MS. SIMPKINS: She's giving an example in response to my question.

THE COURT: I think she's answering the question by analogy.

You may proceed --

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: -- with your answer.

THE WITNESS: And if it's a high risk behavior and we see verbalization or gestures of, I want to hurt myself, the only -- the most reliable predictor is past suicide attempts. In child abuse if a person has abused a child, they will not typically say I want to go abuse my child again, I want to go hurt my child again. What red flags in my head is, well my mom and daddy beat me and it worked for me, I believe in spanking. What do you spank with, a switch, a belt? Those

are predictors. They're verbalizing another intent. So if they're verbalizing an intent of behavior until the behavior takes place, you can only form some prediction of the future based on what they're saying, okay? So that's the analogy I'm alluding to. Any of us, we will sit in the same seats in the — if we sit there, we come back in, we'll sit there. But we don't stand at the door and say, are you going to sit in the same seat. So with parents that abuse, if they come into the office and they say, again, beating worked for me, it will work for my children, they go get a switch or the typical angry person that says, I'll do anything you want me to but go to anger management, then those are good predictors. Okay.

Q Did you see any of those good predictors in -- during your sessions with Keaundra?

A No.

Q Okay. Even knowing what you know now that The Court made a finding that Keaundra physically abused the child, do you think that that one-time incident is going to predict that Keaundra would physically abuse her children in the future?

A No. I think it'll predict that she will be a more watchful mother.

Q And why do you say that?

A Because if the iron which I believe somehow came down, hit the child, it was an accident. And as I've told her

if something -- if you are neglectful in watching your children and an accident happens, you are still responsible. When I went to the house that day, quite honestly, I didn't know if he could stick his fingers in the fan. There's a lot of fans that are made with the things close. My thinking was, what does she think.

- Q So is that why you asked her that question?
- A Yes.
- Q To see her --
- A There was -- there was no other dangers inside in that home. So when I saw the fan it -- as a parent, a grandparent, if I have a fan and my kids walk in -- my grand kids -- well my grand kids, my kids are old enough to know better -- I'm going to be more careful to see if their little fingers can fit in there. I wanted to see her response, if she would dismiss it or if she would respond.
 - Q And what was the purpose of that test?
 - A I want to know no child will be abused.
- Q So knowing what you know now, Ms. Fortune, about The Court found that Keaundra physically abused that child and based on your therapy with her, based on seeing her with her children based on knowing Keaundra, do you still believe that she's a low risk to reoffend?
 - A Yes. I'm not sure she's a risk to offend.

A I know that was --

3

4

Q So assuming for the sake of argument that The Court's finding was correct, that she actually, physically abused that child, does that change your opinion today?

5

A If I thought she could hold an iron to a baby's face, I would not want her to have the children. That has to be a fairly intentional, malicious person.

8

9

7

Q Okay. And as you sit here today do you believe that she actually did that?

11

10

A No.

12

0 Why not?

can't stretch that far.

13

14

A Again, my experience in working with women that have battered children, that have battered spouses -- well,

15

typically they have a history of abuse themselves either by a parent, a spouse, a boyfriend, girlfriend, somebody. And

16 17

there's anger. There's trauma that manifests as anger. And

18

it's taken out on the most vulnerable which oftentimes are the

19

children. I don't see that in her. I don't hear it in her

20

history. I have to stretch to believe she would do it, and I

21

Q Even given your earlier testimony that when she

23

22

first came in she was scattered all over the place?

24

A She wasn't angrily scattered. She was just

1	extremely anxious, extremely, can you do this for me, can I
2	I need to do this, I need to do that. The undercurrent of
3	anxiety is fear. The undercurrent of depression is
4	hopelessness.
5	MS. SIMPKINS: Okay.
6	No further questions, Your Honor.
7	MR. CORDES: I have no further questions for this
8	witness.
9	JANE FORTUNE
10	testifies as follows on:
11	<u>EXAMINATION</u>
12	BY THE COURT:
13	Q I just have just have one. This your the
۱4	State's Exhibit Number 2, the diagnostic assessment dated June
15	6th of 2012.
16	A Yes, Sir.
17	Q The first paragraph, is it presenting problem? This
18	is a summary of what Deandra Keaundra told you about what
19	had happened and I assumed that you relied on the
20	truthfulness of her statements in formulating your therapy.
21	A Yes, Sir. And I was in communication with the
22	social worker.
23	Q There was a statement in your report that says,
24	mote, she states that the father of the children was in the

1 JANE FORTUNE 2 testifies as follows on: 3 REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MS. SIMPKINS: 4 You said he told -- she told you over and over just 5 -- did she ever change that story that he had been there and 6 7 left? 8 Huh-um (in the negative). Is that a no? 9 0 Oh, he has not -- she has not changed the story. 10 Α 11 I'm sorry. Okay. So if what you wrote in here was not correct, 12 it would have been something that you misstated, not something 13 · 14 Keaundra said? 15 Α No. 16 Okav. 0 It's -- what she said and she has said over and over 17 Α is that he had been there and left. 18 MS. SIMPKINS: No further questions, Your Honor. 19 THE COURT: Okay. You may step down and hopefully you 20 21 can make your flight back.

MS. FORTUNE: I think I'll make it.

MS. SIMPKINS: Oh, she'll make it.

THE COURT: Can we take a ten minute recess?

. 22

23

1	MS. SIMPKINS: Yes, please, thank you.							
2	MR. CORDES: Yes, Your Honor.							
3	(WHEREUPON, THE MATTER WAS TRAILED AT 10:45:43 AND RECALLED AT							
4	10:59:57.)							
5	THE COURT: Okay.							
6	We are officially now back on the record in 446967.							
7	Parties and counsel are present.							
8	Now, if you'd raise your right hand and be sworn.							
9	THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear the testimony you are							
10	about to give in this action shall be the truth, the whole							
11	truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?							
12	THE WITNESS: I do.							
13	THE CLERK: Thank you. Please state your name for the							
14	record.							
15	THE WITNESS: My name is Roberta Cummings, last name is							
16	spelled, C-u-m-m-i-n-g-s.							
17	THE CLERK: Thank							
18	THE WITNESS: My former name was Roberta Mossman.							
19	THE MARSHAL: Go ahead and have a seat.							
20	THE COURT: And, I'm sorry. What was your first name?							
21	THE WITNESS: Roberta.							
22	THE COURT: Roberta.							
23	THE WITNESS: R-o-b-e-r-t-a.							
24	THE COURT: Thank you very much.							

1	You may proceed, Mr. Cordes.
2	MR. CORDES: Thank you.
3	ROBERTA CUMMINGS
4	having been called as a witness by The State and being first
5	duly sworn, testifies as follows:
6	DIRECT EXAMINATION
7	BY MR. CORDES:
8	Q Roberta, where are you currently employed?
9	A I work for the Clark County Department of Family
10	Services.
11	Q And how long have you worked for the Clark County
12	Department of Family Services?
13	A Just over five years.
14	Q While serving as an employee with the Clark County
15	Department of Family Services, were you assigned a case
16	involving Aamiyah Lamb and Christopher Bynum, Jr.?
17	A Yes.
18	Q Can you recall approximately when you were first
19	assigned a case involving those children?
20	A April 27th of 2010.
21	Q On April 27th of 2010 what were the allegations that
22	brought the two children to the attention of the Clark County
23	Department of Family Services?
24	A Environmental neglect and physical abuse. And I

9

10

11

12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Α That she doesn't know why CPS would be involved with her and that I could hear a male voice in the background. there were some derogatory statements, and she ended up hanging up on me.

When you made the face-to-face contact with Aamiyah 0 at her school, where was that contact done?

I spoke with her in a conference room at the school. It was just her and I in the room.

When you spoke to Aamiyah in that conference room at 0 the school, did you record the conversation?

Α I did not.

Did you subsequently transfer any information from that conversation into an official record or a document that you might keep?

I entered a case note into the UNITY system. Α

After you met with Aamiyah, what steps, if any, did Q you take to further investigate the matter?

I was able to get a address for the -- for the family because initially the address I had was a address on Nellis Air Force Base. They were not staying there. went to the address that I was able to obtain and knocked on the door. It was Mom and her boyfriend's address where she was staying with the children.

0 All right.

1	A On Carey Avenue.
2	Q And when you say mom and boyfriend, who is
3	identified as the mother of Christopher and Aamiyah?
4	A That was Ms. DeBerry.
5	Q And who was identified in your statement as Mother's
6	boyfriend?
7	A I'm having a blank right now (chuckle). I want to
8	say it was Mr. Lamb.
9	Q All right. And were you able to make contact with
10	the mother at the time that you went to the address?
11	A No, I was not.
12	Q Did you make any attempts to further investigate the
13	matter?
14	A I did. The matter was also being co-investigated by
15	the North Las Vegas Police Department.
16	THE COURT: Can you speak up just a little bit?
17	THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. The matter was also being
18	investigated by the North Las Vegas Abuse/Neglect Unit.
19	BY MR. CORDES:
20	Q Okay. Who were you dealing with?
21	A Chandra Mason Murdoch (phonetic).
22	Q So what steps did you take after going to the
23	address for the family?
24	A I had attempted to call Mom again. Also, I went to

19

· 20

21

22

23

· 24

the leasing office to verify that that is who was at that address, and I was told that it was. I was told that Mom was living there with her boyfriend, and that the person there had said that they had seen both children. And that they did see — when Mom had initially moved in, in the middle of April, that she saw the burn mark on the child's face.

Q Okay. Were you subsequently able to make contact with the mother?

A I was not able to make the contact with the mother in person, just by telephone.

Q When was the next telephone contact that you had with the mother that you can recall following the one on April 27th, 2010?

A Goodness. I want to say it was the beginning of May
I had gone back to the apartment with North Las Vegas to see
if they were still living at the apartment. And the mother
had called, um...

Q The mother called you?

A I believe so. Yeah. The mother had called my work phone.

Q Between April 27, 2010 and that phone call of May of 2010, were you able to see Christopher?

A I was not.

Q When was the first time that you saw Christopher if

Q	Do you	recall v	what t	the	mother	may	have	told	you
about the	alleged	injury	that	Chr	istophe	er ha	ad dur	ring :	your
investiga	tion?								

A She had said that he had pulled an iron off a piece of future and that the iron inflicted the injury, that it was self -- that he did it to himself. Accidental trauma is what she said.

Q Did you discuss whether or not Christopher had received any medical treatment with Ms. DeBerry?

A I believe I asked her if she took the child to the doctor, and she said she didn't.

Q Did Ms. DeBerry discuss with you any course of treatment she may have provided for Christopher, Jr. as a result of that alleged injury?

A I want to say she mentioned putting Neosporin on it.

Q All right. Besides speaking with the mother, did you have any contact with any medical personnel relative to the injuries that Christopher had sustained?

A I did. We were able to obtain pictures of Christopher's face from the OSI, from OSI Investigators --

- Q Okay.
- A -- in Louisiana.
- Q From OSI.
- A Um-hmm (in the affirmative).

Q

A The Office of Special Investigations for the Air

Force.

So what does OSI stand for?

Q Was Ms. -- was the mother of the children in the Air Force?

A No, she was not.

O How did the Air Force OSI become involved?

A The maternal grandmother's husband is active duty
Air Force, and they were residing on the Air Force Base. And
that's where the children were found.

Q All right. Based on your investigation to the matter, did you refer the case to the District Attorney's Office for the filing of an abuse or neglect petition?

A I did.

Q And why did you make the referral to the District Attorney's Office?

A Upon my investigation, especially initially when I had went to the school, I spoke to the school office also. When I spoke to Aamiyah she described the -- the incident of the burn as happening when she was at the home, when Mom's boyfriend was at the home and when Mom was at the home. She said that the boyfriend had told her to watch Christopher. The mom had ironed some clothes on a coffee table and then went to get ready for work. Aamiyah said she didn't see the

child get burned, but she was told by the boyfriend that the child tried to kiss the iron. And that she had gotten in trouble for not watching him because she was watching TV. And so she remembers getting in trouble by the boyfriend who she said was present. And then when I talked to the school, the boyfriend was listed as the father on the school records, and that the child had only been enrolled there for seven days. And during those days most days he would ask to be in the classroom and observe. But the school was concerned about him because he was found wandering the campus. At one point they had had a potluck and he helped himself to the food and was wandering the campus without Aamiyah. And they were concerned about --

MS. MOLINAR: Objection, Your Honor, as to relevance.

THE WITNESS: -- what his intentions might be.

THE COURT: What?

MR. CORDES: The question was why did she submit the petition request to the District Attorney's Office. So she's laying out all the foundation as to why she made the referral.

MS. MOLINAR: But now she's getting into the series of -the father wandering around. And I don't know what that has
to do with the -- a threat to the subject minors.

THE WITNESS: I can -- I can clarify that. Um -THE COURT: Well, wait. There's an objection pending.

. 23

24

1

2

I'm -- in a TPR case I am a little bit concerned about the relevance of why the petition was filed. The objection is sustained.

BY MR. CORDES:

Q All right. So can you -- can you limit the factual basis as to what allegations the Department of Family Services thought needed to be addressed through The Court.

A One of the allegations was environmental neglect.

The environmental neglect was in -- that there were drugs available and in reach of the children in the apartment. When I spoke to the school they had talked about their concern that he was loitering around the children. When I talked to the prior school --

MS. MOLINAR: Objection, Your Honor, hearsay.

THE COURT: Overruled. It's not being admitted to prove the truth of the matter.

Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: I learned that there had been -- the boyfriend had been brought up on charges for loitering to sell drugs around the elementary school. So, the concern was that -- and there was also criminal history involving drugs. So the Department's concern was that there -- the child did have drugs possibly within her -- the reach of the children as well as the physical abuse injury which was staffed at a CARES

meeting with abuse and neglect doctor, Dr. Mehta. And the outcome of that was that the injury could not have been self inflicted, and that would have -- it would have been caused by a pressing of the iron against the child's face.

Q Okay. Any other concerns as far as the investigation that the Department of Family Services requested the petition through the District Attorney's Office to address?

A We were concerned about violence in the home. We were concerned about the physical abuse and the possible access to drugs by the children.

Q Okay. What was the basis for the concern for the domestic violence history or violence in the home?

A There was reports that the -- the boyfriend was violent. He had some prior violent history, and that's where that came from.

Q Okay. Were you able to ever address the reports in his history with the mother specifically?

A When I spoke to the mom about the issue, she would try to basically deflect all of the questions and try to give excuses. But she didn't really answer questions for me directly.

Q And when you say there was a history of violence what was that history based upon?

22

23

1	certificate from?
2	A I don't recall.
3	Q How about for Christopher Bynum, Jr.? Were you able
4	to find that child's birth certificate?
5	A That was ordered at the same time. I want to say
6	his came back sooner. I want to say he was born in Las Vegas
7	and that there wasn't a dad listed.
8	MR. CORDES: Okay. And
9	(MR. CORDES SHOWS DOCUMENT TO MS. SIMPKINS, THEN BRINGS
10	DOCUMENT TO THE CLERK.)
11	(BRIEF PAUSE.)
12	THE COURT: Are those marked Proposed 3 and 4?
13	MR. CORDES: Yes, Your Honor.
14	BY MR. CORDES:
15	Q All right. Ms. Mossman, I'm going to show you
16	what's now been marked as State's Proposed Exhibit 3. Would
17	you please take a look at that document?
18	(BRIEF PAUSE.)
19	Do you recognize State's Proposed Exhibit 3?
20	A I don't recognize it.
21	Q Okay. And State's Proposed Exhibit 4. Would you
22	take a look at that document? Do you recognize that document?
23	(BRIEF PAUSE.)
24	A I don't recognize it.

22

23

24

Q	Okay
---	------

(MR. CORDES RETURNS TO THE TABLE.)

All right. Any other conversations with the mother that you can recall relative to your investigation between April and June of 2010?

There were some other conversations where the mom would call and -- because I had asked her why she left Nevada with the children and didn't allow me to see them, those kind of questions. And she had said that she was -- had issues with a co-worker, and that was why she left.

Okay. Did she tell you when the issue with the co-Q worker developed?

She gave several stories. So I didn't -- I don't Α recall exactly. It would have been somewhere around the same time as my investigation, my initial contacts.

During the course of your investigation did you learn how long Ms. DeBerry and the two children had been in Nevada prior to the report April of 2010?

It was my understanding they'd been there several years.

MR. CORDES: Thank you.

I don't have any further questions for this witness.

THE COURT: Cross?

MS. MOLINAR: Yes, Your Honor. One moment.

4

5

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 17

18

19

20 21

22

23

24

CROSS EXAMINATION

Good morning, Ms. Cummings.

Hello. Α

BY MS. MOLINAR:

testifies as follows on:

Isn't it true that the information that you got 0 regarding the alleged abuse came from an anonymous source?

The source wasn't anonymous. I did speak with a person reporting.

Okay. And who was that person?

MR. CORDES: Objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: As to the person reporting?

MR. CORDES: The name of the individual is confidential by statute.

I think -- well, my question was, is the MS. MOLINAR: person anonymous. And I think by her saying she can't disclose it --

THE COURT: All right.

MS. MOLINAR: -- that person is anonymous.

Okay. The confidential reporter's name is THE COURT: confidential. But if you're trying to -- if the inquire is regarding the anonymous person if she knows. Is that your question, does she know who the anonymous person is?

	MS. MOL	INAR:	think r	my quest	cion is.	• •
(MS.	MOLINAR	AND MS	SIMPKI	NS TALK	AMONGST	THEMSELVES.)
BY M	s. MOLIN	AR:				

- Q Okay, Ms. Cummings. How did you -- when talking to the source, how did you ascertain that this was credible information?
- A The source had specific information about the burn. The source had information about being inside the home. In my attempts to verify the information there -- you know, there was injury to the child's face. The police reports indicated that there was drug history, these things.
- Q Okay. You had stated that the source stated they had been in the home. Wasn't it correct that the source gave you the wrong address?
- A The source gave me a prior address. And, again, the family had only been in the Carey Avenue address since April 14th of 2010.
- Q Okay. Isn't it correct that when you went to -- the source had disclosed that there was drugs in the home. But when you went to the home you didn't find any such drugs?
- A I wasn't able to initially get into the home or see the home until, goodness, about a week later.
- Q But when you did get into the home, isn't it correct that you did not find any drugs in the home?

24

THE COURT: Well the next question --

I did not find any drugs. They did know I was

2

11 12

13

15

14

16

17

18

19 20

21

2223

24

Q Okay. Okay. Isn't it true in your UNITY notes you said, "the subject minor reported her daddy told her to watch her baby brother, and she was watching TV instead of watching him. Subject Minor stated that the natural mother ironed some clothes and left the iron on the coffee table. Natural Mother went into the bathroom to do her hair, and the subject minor stated that her baby brother tried to kiss the iron and burned his left cheek on the iron."

A Yes, that's what she told me. And then she told me also that it was her that -- he told her that that's what happened. So I asked her, did you see it happen.

Q Okay. So did you state that in your UNITY notes that the boyfriend said --

A I don't -- I don't recall. If it's not there then I didn't state it.

Q Okay. If you do not recall, would looking at your UNITY notes refresh your recollection that you did not put it in your UNITY notes?

A If it's not in the note right there then I didn't put it in there.

Q Would you like to look at it to verify?

MR. CORDES: Object --

THE WITNESS: I don't need to do that.

MS. SIMPKINS: -- absolutely nothing wrong with that.

23

24

MR. CORDES: There's a black mark and it's highlighted. She cannot show him (sic) those notes.

MS. SIMPKINS: Highlight -- you can highlight notes, Your Honor. You can highlight notes to show the witness exactly where you want them to look. That -- there's nothing wrong with that. I do it all -- every day.

MR. CORDES: Well, just because Ms. Simpkins does it every day doesn't mean it's correct, Your Honor.

MS. SIMPKINS: There's nothing wrong with that.

MS. MOLINAR: Your Honor --

THE COURT: Well if the issue is whether she did or did not enter in the notes and took her statement then whether the notes are marked or not is really not relevant. I'll allow the witness to look at them.

(MS. MOLINAR APPROACHES AND GIVES THE WITNESS THE DOCUMENT.)

MR. CORDES: If the record could just reflect that the attorney is showing records that have been interlineated or marked upon by Counsel, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That's fine. The issue is the absence of an entry, not a specific entry that was made.

THE WITNESS: My response is the same that she was told that that happened. And it doesn't say in here that she saw it happen.

BY MS. MOLINAR:

1 0 Is -- so is it your testimony that --THE COURT: Is there anything in there that says that she 2 3 was told by the boyfriend that --4 THE WITNESS: No. THE COURT: -- that the infant had attempted to kiss the 5 6 iron? THE WITNESS: No, I didn't -- I didn't -- it's not marked 7 in there that the boyfriend told her that. 8 9 THE COURT: All right. THE WITNESS: It's also not marked in there that she saw 10 She -- that she didn't see it. 11 it. THE COURT: Okay. You want to retrieve the notes? 12 · 13 MS. MOLINAR: Yes. (MS. MOLINAR RETRIEVES THE NOTES FROM THE WITNESS.) 14 BY MS. MOLINAR: 15 Ms. Cummings, how come you did not state that the 16 Q boyfriend had told Aamiyah that the baby kissed the iron in · 17 your -- in the investigation summary disposition report? 18 I don't recall. A lot of times with the case notes, 19 Α

A I don't recall. A lot of times with the case notes you know, I have a lot of case notes to enter and a lot of different cases. And I tried to put everything in as accurately and as completely as possible. But I don't always get every single thing. It may be in my mind but not necessarily on the paper.

20

- 21

22

23

1	Q Okay. Okay. You testified earlier that you had
2	contact with some medical personnel in regards to the subject
3	minor's injury. Is that correct?
4	A Yes.
- 5	Q Did you ever get a fax from a Dr. Thomas Newman who
6	had seen the child in Louisiana?
7	A Yes, I did.
8	Q Do you recall what that fax stated in his report?
- 9	A The
10	MR. CORDES: Objection, Your Honor. Call for hearsay.
11	THE COURT: What's it being offered for?
12	MS. MOLINAR: I'm sorry. Say that again?
- 13	THE COURT: What what is it being offered for, what
14	the doctor said in the fax? Is it being offered to prove the
15	truth of what was said or for some other reason?
16	MS. MOLINAR: Yes, it's being offered for the truth. Um,
. 17	let me see
18	THE COURT: Then the objection is sustained.
19	MR. CORDES: Thank you, Your Honor.
20	(BRIEF PAUSE.)
. 21	BY MS. MOLINAR:
22	Q Okay. So Ms. Cummings though did you receive the
23	fax?

Α

Yes.

21

22

23

24

Q	Ana	ala	you	review	the	contents	οf	that	fax?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You testified earlier that Ms. DeBerry's boyfriend was loitering to sell drugs. How -- what made you come to the conclusion that loitering at an elementary school meant that he was selling drugs?

A Well, what I had said was that he was loitering at the initial school and they were concerned about him. And I had contacted the other school and learned that there was actually an arrest made outside of that school. Or that...

Q Okay. When you removed the children, did you remove them because you believed that Keaundra DeBerry herself burned Christopher, Jr.?

- A I -- I actually believed that it was the boyfriend.
- Q Okay.
- A And that she was covering for him.
- Q Okay. To go back to your interview with Aamiyah at the school, isn't it true that at the interview that no safety concerns were disclosed?

A No, Aamiyah did not disclose safety concerns other than that -- that there was a burn that did occur.

Q Okay. Isn't it true that at that time Aamiyah stated that she does not fear anyone in the household and does not fear any visitors?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 19

. 20

21

22

23

· 24

Yes. Α

MR. CORDES: Objection, Your Honor. At this point it's all hearsay what the child disclosed. So she's offering that for the truth.

THE COURT: Well, act -- well, I'm going to sustain the objection.

(BRIEF PAUSE.)

BY MS. MOLINAR:

- Okay. Ms. Cummings, after your interview with Aamiyah did you remove the children immediately?
- No, I didn't. I had attempted to meet with the Α mother to see the baby is what -- what my next course of action was.
 - But you did not remove the children? 0
- I did not take Aamiyah from school if that's what Α you're asking.
- Okay. Ms. Cummings, isn't it true that the allegations for drugs and domestic violence as to Ms. DeBerry were dropped?
- I don't recall. It's possible. I don't recall. Again, it's Ms. DeBerry -- once again it was an environmental neglect issue, not saying that the drugs were hers or not. didn't actually -- I wasn't able to get to that part of the investigation because of the time lapse. When I went to the

THE COURT: Oh, it's 2 and 3? 1 MR. CORDES: They're right here. 2 THE COURT: He could -- he couldn't --3 THE MARSHAL: Ma'am, if you could --4 MR. CORDES: She couldn't identify them. 5 THE MARSHAL: If you could just remain standing. You're 6 7 going to raise your right hand. MR. CORDES: So they're still marked. 8 THE CLERK: Please raise your right hand. 9 You do solemnly swear the testimony you are about to 10 give in this action shall be the truth, the whole truth, and 11 nothing but the truth, so help you God? 12 13 MS. DEBERRY: I do. THE CLERK: Thank you. 14 Okay. Actually, before you begin, just a 15 THE COURT: housekeeping issue. State's Proposed 2 and 3 are the birth 16 17 certificates. THE MARSHAL: You may sit down. 18 19 MS. DEBERRY: Okay. THE COURT: Is there --20 MS. SIMPKINS: No objection. 21 THE COURT: No objection. All right. Proposed 2 and 3 22 23 will be admitted.

MR. CORDES: It's actually 3 and 4.

```
THE COURT: 3 and 4, I'm sorry.
         THE CLERK: 3 and 4, yes.
2
3
         MR. CORDES: Thank you.
         THE COURT: 2 was already admitted. 3 and 4, the birth
4
5
    certificates.
                            (STATE'S EXHIBITS 3 AND 4 ARE ADMITTED.)
6
         MS. SIMPKINS: Quit helping (chuckle).
7
         MR. CORDES: (Chuckle.) Thank you.
8
         THE COURT: All right. You may proceed, Mr. Cordes.
9
         MR. CORDES: All right. Thank you.
10
                            KEAUNDRA DEBERRY
11
    having been called as a witness by The State and being first
12
    duly sworn, testifies as follows:
13
14
                           DIRECT EXAMINATION
    BY MR. CORDES:
15
              Ms. -- is it DeBerry?
16
         0
               Yes, Sir.
17
         A
               Okay. Ms. DeBerry, would you please state your
18
         Q
19
    legal name for the record?
               Keaundra DeBerry.
20
         A
               All right. And how do you spell Keaundra?
21
         0
               K-e-a-u-n-d-r-a.
22
          Α
               And how do you spell DeBerry?
23
         Q
24
          Α
               D-e-B-e-r-r-y.
```

1	Q	Is the B Capitalized?
2	A	Yes.
3	Q	So it's D, small or lowercase e, a capital B?
4	A	Um-hmm (in the affirmative).
5	Q	All right. All right, how old are you today?
6	A	I am twenty-five.
7	Q	Are you married?
8	A	No.
9	Q	Have you ever been married?
10	A	No.
11	Q	How many children do you have?
12	A	Three.
13	Q	Okay. Starting with your oldest child and working
14	your way d	down, can you please give me their legal name and
15	their age	
16	A	Aamiyah Lamb, eight years old. Christopher Bynum,
17	Jr., three	e. And Keaundre Bynum, one.
18	Q	All right. And since Keaundre is not part of this
19	case, can	you spell his name for us?
20	A	Yes. K-e-a-u-n-d-r-e Bynum, B-y-n-u-m.
21	Q	All right. So Aamiyah Lamb, who is her father, if
22	you know?	
23	A	Joseph Lamb.
24	Q	Joseph Lamb. Okay. Now, did you ever identify a

Α

No.

```
1
               In Plain Dealing, Louisiana.
         Α
               Is that Plain?
2
         0
              Plain, P-l-a-i-n.
3
         Α
4
              Dillon? D --
         Q
5
         Α
             D-e-a-l-i-n-g.
6
              D-e-a-1 --
         Q
7
             L-i-n-g.
         A
         MS. SIMPKINS: You don't speak Southern?
8
9
         MR. CORDES: No (chuckle).
         THE WITNESS: (Chuckle.)
10
    BY MR. CORDES:
11
               Plain Dealing, okay, Louisiana?
12
13
         Α
              Yes, Sir.
              All right. And do you know why he's incarcerated?
14
         Q
              Not exactly. I've known of some charges, but --
15
         Α
              How do you know he's incarcerated?
16
         Q
              Mom and he was trying to come visit one time, and --
17
          Α
               Okay, sorry. When you say mom, who are you --
18
         Q
19
               Mom -- Mom let me know.
         Α
               Who's Mom?
20
         0
               Paulette Bynum, Christopher's mom.
21
          Α
               Okay. So the paternal grandmother of your children?
22
          Q
23
          Α
               Correct.
               All right. So paternal grandmother told you --
24
          Q
```

1	Q	Okay. So eight months ago you moved to Latta, South
2	Carolina.	
3	A	Correct.
4	Q	All right. Prior to moving to Latta, where did you
5	live?	
6	A	In Shreveport, Louisiana.
7	Q	How long did you live in Shreveport, Louisiana?
8	A	Two years.
9	Q	Who did you live in Shreveport, Louisiana with?
10	А	Some with my mother and then I obtained my own
11	apartment	•
12	Q	And when you say your mother, that's the maternal
13	grandmothe	er of your children. What's her name?
14	A	Bonita Taylor (phonetic herein).
15	Q	And does Ms. Taylor or Bonita Taylor have custody or
16	placement	of Aamiyah and Christopher Jr.?
17	A	Yes, Sir.
18	Q	Do you know when Aamiyah and Christopher Jr. were
19	placed wit	th your mom?
20	A	If I can recall it was August of 2011.
21	Q	All right. And do you have any safety concerns,
22	relative	the children, while placed with your mother?
23	A	No, Sir.
24	Q	Is the placement still on a military base?

1	A	Correct.
2	Q	Okay. Are you currently employed?
3	A	Yes, Sir.
4		Where are you employed?
	Q	
5	A	Wendy's.
6	Q	And what do you do at Wendy's?
7	А	I'm a manager in training.
8	Q	Okay. And before you become a manager, what's your
9	official	title?
10	А	Well, uh, crew trainer.
11	Q	How long have you been employed at Wendy's?
12	A	Since April.
13	Q	Of 2012?
14	A	Yes.
15	Q	Okay. Before becoming employed at Wendy's in April
16	of 2012,	were you employed?
17	A	Yes, Sir.
18	Q	Where were you employed?
19	A	At Sonic.
20	Q	What did you do at Sonic?
21	A	I was a manager.
22	Q	How long were you employed at Sonic?
23	A	About well, two years there and once I left here
0.4		

it was four years.

situations where you've been fussin' with Mr. Bynum Sr.?

of 2009.

She did purchase a ticket for me.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

go to Barksdale Air Force Base on May 6th.

- A Okay. Maybe a week or two.
- Q Okay. Why did you leave Nevada on May 6th, 2010?
- A I had issues with a former employee. I was -- do you need me go in details for that?

A I was a manager and I had to terminate an employee, and it got real physical to where she was threatening me and my kids. And I had no family here in Las Vegas. Mom and Dad had -- just had orders to Barksdale. So Mom felt that it was safer for me and the kids to come reside with her.

Q Okay. And when did those issues start with your former employee?

A It was around the -- I can't recall the exact date, but it was around the time I removed her from that one school into Martinez. And I actually moved myself from one apartment to a gated community before I decided to actually leave.

- Q Okay. So you took your daughter out of Stewart Elementary School and enrolled her at Martinez Elementary school to avoid the former employee knowing what school she went to?
 - A Right. She had --
 - Q Okay.
 - A -- authorization to get her in and out of school.

1	Q	The former employee was the babysitter?		
2	A	She was. Yes.		
3	Q	Why don't we just clarify the record. What was her		
4	name?			
5	A	Latisha Galle.		
6	Q	Latisha Galle?		
7	A	Um-hmm (in the affirmative).		
8	Q	Is it G-a-1-1-e?		
9	A	L-e. Yes, Sir.		
10	Q	Okay. And you actually went and got a restraining		
11	order aga	inst her, right?		
12	A	Yes, Sir.		
13	Q	She was your babysitter for how long?		
14	A	About a year.		
15	Q	And was Latisha Galle babysitting for you in or		
16	about April of 2010?			
17	A	Yes.		
18	Q	And when did you fire her?		
19	A	I fired her		
20	Q	I'm sorry. From the Sonic employment.		
21	A	It wasn't actually Sonic; it was actually Wendy's		
22	Q	I'm sorry.		
23	A	that I fired her from. But that was about four		
	I			

months before I was at Sonics, about four months --